
Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 22 of 31 
 

[UNR]), which each has regulatory authority to impose rates and fees.  Mr. Salter agreed that is 
correct.   
 
Member Larkin stated that the challenge is that we do not have a unified body that can impose 
tolls, rates and fees and the question is whether there would be differential tolls, rates and fees 
applied in different projects that would have different standards applied to them that may not 
conform with the Corps’ requirements.  Mr. Salter stated that the Corps would most likely not be 
interested in “our” fee structures or rate making.  Member Larkin agreed but stated the Corps is 
interested in the standard of the project and each body currently has the ability to solicit from the 
Corps differential projects with differential standards that would not meet a uniform standard that 
the community is seeking for flood control protection.  Mr. Salter agreed and stated that the 
Corps would be seeking concurrence; the Corps has been adamant that they are seeking one 
project sponsor with which to work.  Member Larkin stated that currently the Corps deals with 
one sponsor, the Board of County Commissioners (BCC).  He stated that the relationship is not 
satisfactory to the community, which is why we are here.  Mr. Salter stated that is correct.  
Member Larkin reiterated that the BCC, as the current sponsoring agency, is not acceptable to 
the community. 
 
Member Larkin reiterated his request for an explanation of the addition of “propose” in non-
technical language.  Mr. Salter stated that if the Agreement is approved, Reno, Sparks and 
Washoe County are conferring this function to the Authority on a non-exclusive basis because 
carrying out the function involves some things in which the Authority might be interested but it 
also involves things in which the Cities or County would want to be involved in exercising their 
land use powers.  He added that it says two things: 

1) “The Cities and the County would confer to the Authority the ability to regulate the 
flow and control of floodwaters.”  He added that is a physical regulation; the Authority 
would have the ability to build levees, flood walls, and physical features that actually 
control where the water flows.  

2) In terms of regulatory provisions for land use policy, in drafting the JPA, Doug 
Thornley, Susan Rothe, Melanie Foster and he came to the conclusion that care is 
needed in how much regulatory authority can or should be delegated to the Authority 
by Reno, Sparks and Washoe County.  He reiterated that Reno, Sparks and Washoe 
County are given land use authority to do master planning, zoning, approval of 
projects and set land use policies by statute.  He stated that all involved agreed that 
most of that power is non-delegable to a JPA; it is a responsibility that must be 
carried out by planning commissions and governing bodies.   

 
Mr. Salter summarized that care was taken in drafting the JPA language so that the Authority 
would have some interest in land use decisions in order to carry out its mission of protecting the 
public from floods.  Also addressed is the Authority’s mission to protect the investment of the 
ratepayers (who would be investing $500 million into the project) and also to protect the 
investment of the Corps, who would be investing $1 billion into the project and are very specific 
on how the money can be spent.  He stated that Chapter 278 and a Public Policy consideration 
is that the Cities and the Counties should not be giving away their land use powers.  He added 
that the project needs to at least have some input in the exercise of those powers.   
 
Mr. Salter stated that the chosen language basically states that the Authority would have 
standing to go to the Planning Commissions and recommend provisions to their master plans or 
development codes.  He added that they believe the Authority should have the right to review 
some projects if they would possibly have an adverse impact on the Flood Project.  He stated 
that for reasons he mentioned, 3.0.2.A.i was written as it is, to enable building levees and 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 23 of 31 
 

features and to have the power to propose changes to local development codes and to make 
recommendations or comments regarding specific projects.  He reiterated that land use 
decisions and policy making remains with the local planning commissions and governing 
bodies. 
 
Member Cashell asked “What if the local body did not agree with them?”  Mr. Salter stated that 
there is nothing in the Agreement that addresses that; however, there is language in the statute 
that addresses the issue, “that if the Flood Project Authority feels that it’s an aggrieved person 
by a decision by a planning commission, under each entity’s codes, there is an appeal process 
for a planning commission decision to the City Council or BCC.  He stated that because that 
process is already in place by statute, it was not included in the Agreement.  He added that the 
Authority could appeal to the City Council or BCC and if the authority still feels it is terribly 
aggrieved, then the Authority could request judicial review.   
 
Member Cashell stated that when the FPCC was initiated, he believed its purpose was to advise 
the BCC because they have all the authority that is provided in the JPA Agreement.  He added 
that he thought the entities working together on the FPCC would forward information to the 
BCC; he did not realize that another entity would be created.  Mr. Salter stated that he just 
heard this morning, that these issues were coming so he has not had much time to review the 
issue.   
 
Mr. Salter added that “off the top of his head”, there are things that the BCC can not do that the 
Authority could:   

1) The BCC can not impose fees, rates and charges in Reno and Sparks.  If the use of 
a separate entity is abandoned, another mechanism of imposing fees would have to 
be developed.  He added that if the entities were not in agreement on fees, there 
could be an imbalance between the jurisdictions.  Member Cashell stated that the 
fees would have to be approved by each City Council and the BCC.  Mr. Salter 
agreed and added that another option would be to appoint Washoe County to have 
all the powers that would be granted to the Authority.   

2) Whoever owns this project and has the responsibility to protect the public, whether 
Washoe County or a JPA, must have some power to provide some input in the land 
use decisions made by the Cities and County.  He stated that if the process 
continued with the FPCC, with Washoe County being the prime mover, Washoe 
County might be visiting with the planning commissions.  Member Cashell stated that 
is why the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA) was created to 
address those issues.  Mr. Salter agreed that the TMRPA has a Regional Plan and 
hears appeals on projects of regional significance; however, a goal for the JPA is 
that the problems could be solved at the local level.   

3) If Washoe County is to take the lead, they will be taking on a tremendous amount of 
liability because they would be the owner and the operator of a huge Flood Project.  
He stated he is unsure that Washoe County would even want to accept the 
responsibility.  Member Cashell stated that they have that responsibility currently.  
Mr. Salter agreed but stated they do not have the responsibility currently that they 
would have once the project is built.  Currently all the efforts have been spent on 
planning and designing, with very few projects actually built.  He reiterated that the 
County might not wish to accept the responsibility and added that maybe some sort 
of cross-indemnification provisions could be developed. 

 
Vice-Chair Gustin stated that he believes part of the “rub” from the development community and 
probably homeowners and homeowner’s associations (HOAs) is that there is another layer 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 24 of 31 
 

(another Authority) being added.  He added that it would require another entity in the 
development process.  He asked what would happen if all the entities do not agree to the same 
language in the JPA.  Mr. Salter stated that we could continue to work on it until agreement 
could be reached because all of the entities would have to sign the Agreement.  He added that 
the Agreement has already gone through at least twelve drafts with five attorneys reviewing it.   

 
Mr. Salter referred to the “layer” comment and stated that one issue that was avoided is that the 
JPA would not require a developer to request a permit or permission to do anything.  He added 
that the JPA Agreement also does not create anything that would elongate the time process for 
development decisions.  He explained that the JPA would have the ability to review certain 
applications (a list of which is included) and make comment; however, the comment would have 
to be made within the timeframe of all the other reviewers (i.e. it would not increase the timeline 
for the process).  The comment would be a very helpful comment that would enrich the planning 
process because expert hydrological engineers would be reviewing for any impacts to the 
Truckee River.  He stated that a planning commission might want to know that information 
regardless of the JPA.  He added that the JPA would not have the right to approve or 
disapprove any project; they would only have the right to provide information and comments to 
the planning commissions, which would retain the authority to make the decisions.  Vice-Chair 
Gustin stated he agreed with Mr. Salter’s comments but added that as engineers and lawyers 
can disagree, so can hydrologists.   
 
Member Humke stated there are two primary parts to the JPA; one for land use decisions, and 
the other fees, tolls and charges.  He stated that he is hearing comments that Members do not 
wish to have the JPA create a “fourth local government planning commission”, where an 
aggrieved party could appeal to their City or County.  He asked if the ability to impose fees, tolls 
and charges is delegable to any of the other entities.   
 
Mr. Salter stated that SB 175 was specifically written to authorize the Cities and the County to 
impose this fee; it specifically authorizes that the entities could delegate to a JPA.  He stated he 
was unsure whether they could delegate to one another although he believed it could be done.  
He added that through a Cooperative Agreement under Chapter 277 – General Principles – 
Reno and Sparks could probably delegate authority to Washoe County to impose fees.  He 
stated that if that were the case, it would probably be presented that the County at least has to 
present it to the City Councils.   
 
Vice-Chair Gustin stated that during the Finance portion of the meeting, Member Martini clarified 
that City of Sparks has already enacted a fee.  Member Martini asked for clarification that the 
crux of the JPA is to enable imposing a fee.  Director Duerr concurred, also noting insurance 
and liability issues.  Member Martini asked if it is possible for the other entities to do the same 
as Sparks and impose their own fees and provide them to the Flood Project and eliminate the 
need for a JPA.  Mr. Salter stated it is a possibility; however, it has problems and challenges 
that would need to be overcome.  He explained that difficulties or challenges could arise when 
“we” go to issue bonds to finance the project that would be supported by different revenue 
sources under different circumstances, so finance problems could be encountered.   
 
Member Martini referred to development and asked, “If an entity wants to do a development and 
the Flood Control or JPA says they’re not in agreement with it, does the JPA have the authority 
to (unless they take it to court) stipulate to the entity that they could not do that project?”  He 
clarified his question of whether the JPA would have authority over the City Councils or BCC to 
do a project.  Mr. Salter stated no; the JPA would only have the right to request the entity to say 
no.  Member Martini stated that is what he thought; it would be taken to the planning 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 25 of 31 
 

commissions as a comment only.  Mr. Salter clarified that Washoe County would have that 
same right if “we stick with the current plan” that if someone owns a $1.5 billion project and sees 
danger coming from upstream activities, they would have the right to go to the planning 
commissions and request denying a project; as well as having the right to sue (not pursuant to 
the JPA but under the current law).  He stated for example, if a development would cause over-
topping on facilities, there is currently a right under statute to appeal decisions of the planning 
commissions to the City Councils or for judicial review (or even independent action).  He 
reiterated that issue is nothing new; the same power is already provided to Washoe County.   
 
Member Humke stated that if the wish was to delegate back to the individual entities the 
authority to impose fees, tolls and charges, the other side (as mentioned by Member Martini) is 
the allocation of risk.  He provided the North Truckee Drain as an example and asked if the 
allocation of risk would be wholly to the City of Sparks or if the other entities would be sued 
including the JPA.  Mr. Salter stated that under the JPA Agreement, once rates and fees were 
imposed, Sparks would convey all of the North Truckee Drain assets to the JPA, which would 
build and operate the project.  He explained that most of any liability would be premises liability 
and under the “Reasonable Use” rule, land can not be used that causes damage to others 
unreasonably.  He added that since the JPA would be the land owner and build the project, the 
liability would be placed on the JPA.  He clarified that does not mean that one could not sue 
Sparks; however, the indemnification provisions in the Agreement specifically state that the JPA 
will indemnify, hold harmless, save and defend the Cities and the County from any actions that 
are brought as a result of the condition of the facility.  He added that even if one decided to sue 
the Cities, it would be the JPA’s responsibility to pay for the cost of defense if for some reason a 
judgment was entered against the City (not out of their own independent negligence).   
 
Member Larkin asked if all the authority was delegated to the BCC, who would assume the 
responsibility of liability for a failure of a structure.  Mr. Salter stated that Washoe County would 
be responsible.  Member Larkin clarified that every citizen of Washoe County would be 
responsible.  Mr. Salter stated that is correct; indirectly as taxpayers, the citizens would be 
responsible.  Member Larkin stated that rather than segregating the liability to a specific body 
with a limit, there would only be the resources that were available to the particular entity. Mr. 
Salter agreed.  
 
Member Larkin next referred to Article 4 (“the most controversial portion”), Section 4.02.A of the 
JPA and stated it is the focal point.  He read the section, “Under a draft Project Partnership 
Agreement (assuming we have a partnership agreement with the Corps) proposed in 2006 
which incorporates model Project Partnership Agreement language, the Authority is required to 
(i) annually inform affected interests of the extent of protection afforded by the flood damage 
reduction features, [Article III, Paragraph O]; (ii) prepare and implement a floodplain 
management plan (as required by Section 402 of the Water Resources Development Act of 
1986) designed to reduce the impacts of future flood events in the project area, including but not 
limited to addressing those measures to be taken by the Authority to preserve the level of flood 
protection provided by the flood damage reduction features, [Article III Paragraph Q];              
(iii) publicize and provide floodplain information in the area concerned to zoning and other 
regulatory agencies for their use in adopting regulations, or taking other actions to prevent 
unwise future development and to ensure compatibility with protection levels provided by the 
flood damage reduction features [Article III, paragraph R]; and (iv) prevent obstructions or 
encroachments on the project including prescribing and enforcing regulations to prevent such 
obstructions or encroachments such as any new developments on project lands, easements, 
and rights of way or the addition of facilities which might reduce the level of protection the flood 
damage reduction features afford, reduce the outputs produced by the ecosystem restoration 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 26 of 31 
 

features, hinder operation and maintenance of the project, or interfere with the project’s proper 
function. [Article III, Paragraph S].”  
 
Member Larkin stated that the above assumes that the PPA is accepted and entered into; he 
asked if a PPA is not entered into with the Corps if all those provisions become moot.  Mr. Salter 
stated that they would become moot in the sense that we would no longer be contractually 
obligated because there would not be a contract; however, he added that the points do bring 
forward principles of land management use and other issues that the Flood Project can not 
abandon.  He stated that someone would have to be a project sponsor for the project and will 
have to sign this Agreement and the benefit of using the Authority would be having one entity 
(equally governed by all its members with professional staff available) that would do the work to 
coordinate with all the planning commissions and work with all the planning staffs.  He added 
that the JPA Agreement would ensure that such issues were addressed and that an 
organization would have the resources to make it happen. 
 
Member Larkin asked if the existing Interlocal Agreement (ILA) remains in place, and a PPA 
were implemented, if the BCC would be solely responsible.  Mr. Salter clarified that he does not 
know that a recommendation would be made to continue under the existing ILA because there 
are components that would need to be updated.  He clarified that it would be the responsibility 
of the BCC to sign and be responsible for compliance of such a PPA.  
 
Member Larkin referred to Mr. Peek’s comments related to the definition of “sites” and “critical 
path projects” and stated that probably 96 to 97 percent of the flood features required for the 
LPP have been identified.  He added that the LPP also addresses the need to do all the 
downstream features that protect the downstream users first.  He added that to date the Flood 
Project has done projects on an opportunistic basis (with which Director Duerr agreed) and 
asked if staff has identified a critical path for the LPP for the construction period if a PPA were 
signed.  Director Duerr stated it has not been identified to date; however, the Corps is working 
on a document that will include an “order of construction”.  She stated that to date, the flood 
features which have been implemented - such as the Reno-Sparks Indian Colony levee, the 
culverts for the North Truckee Drain or (if implemented) the Virginia Street Bridge- have all been 
determined to not cause harm to downstream landowners.  She added that mitigation has to be 
in place prior to constructing other parts of the flood project.   
 
Member Larkin asked if under a reduced plan (without Corps support), staff would identify a 
critical path.  Director Duerr stated yes.  Member Larkin stated that under such a scenario, the 
Flood Project would not be obligated to do so; however, morally our downstream neighbors 
would be considered.   
 
Member Larkin referred to Section 4.02.B.2 and specifically the sections dealing with 
applications and asked Mr. Salter for an explanation.  Mr. Salter stated that when the JPA was 
being developed, it was recognized that only so many land use powers could be delegated so a 
list was made of the types of issues of interest to the Flood Project and why.   He added that the 
types of applications that might be submitted to a planning commission were reviewed (keeping 
in mind that when a developer wishes to develop, he/she would make an application to the local 
planning commission; not the JPA).  It was agreed that when such an application is received for 
review and comment, the City or County would agree to make an extra copy of the application 
and submit it to the JPA for review and comment (not a decision).  He explained that the list was 
created with assistance from planning staff from the three entities and narrowed down to only 
the types of applications in which the JPA would have an interest.  He stated that the list 
included the following components: 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 27 of 31 
 

1) Some applications should be sent to the JPA for review and comment. 
2) Some applications would be sent for information only (master planning or zoning 

amendments by a member agency that could have an impact on the flood model so 
information would need to be updated).  The JPA will have input in the local and 
regional master plans. 

3) Some applications might not need to be presented to the JPA whatsoever. 
4) Applications for special use permits or plan of developments by developers would be 

sent to the JPA for review and comment if the project would ultimately discharge or 
drain into the Truckee River or a key tributary.  (If there is no impact to the river, a 
review would not be necessary.)  If there is reason to believe there would be a 
change in hydrologic response to the project site, the application would require JPA 
review.   

5) Applications for approval of tentative maps would come to the JPA under the same 
conditions listed above.  

6) If a planned development (PD) has been approved and the developer did not reserve 
the right during that approval process to review tentative maps, if a PD Handbook 
has been approved (and the project has not reserved the right to look at tentative 
maps for that project), the tentative map does not have to be submitted.  He added 
that the reason behind this issue is that some PD Handbooks are very detailed and 
specific with great drainage plans in place.  He stated that if the project is reviewed, 
the JPA does not need to further review.   

 
Member Cashell referred to developments in areas such as Damonte Ranch, in which wetlands 
have been built and approved by the Corps but due to the current economic situation, certain 
areas have not been developed or built, and asked if those permits are pulled, if the JPA would 
have to provide a review.  Mr. Salter stated that a grading permit would have to be presented to 
the JPA for review and comment.  He added that if the PD or the tentative map is for an overall 
project that has not been reviewed by the JPA and would drain into the Truckee River or a key 
tributary (and exceeds the area threshold established by regulation of the JPA) it would have to 
be approved.  He explained that the last mentioned point is similar to the criteria questioned by 
Mr. Peek.   
 
Vice-Chair Gustin referred to Member Cashell’s question and stated that his understanding was 
that those projects that have gone through the process (even though not completed) would be 
grandfathered.  Director Duerr stated that is correct; if the PD is already in place, no further 
review is required.  She stated that Mr. Peek’s question was if a subsequent tentative map were 
submitted for a part of the project that did not have its grading or drainage in place that is in 
compliance with the PD, would JPA review be required, which she stated it would (although she 
assumes it would be a cursory review).  She added that the size threshold for a grading permit 
review had not yet been set.   
 
Director Duerr clarified that the JPA sets forth a process; however, it does not, in and of itself, 
implement a review process.  She added that such a process, criteria, thresholds, and other 
components would need to be established by the JPA.  She stated that the JPA Agreement only 
provides the authority to implement such criteria and processes.  She added that the JPA would 
need to establish a handbook. 
 
Member Cashell asked Director Duerr what the review timelines would be for the JPA.  Mr. 
Salter stated that the timelines would be based on the individual planning commissions, i.e. if a 
development code specifies ten days for a response; the JPA would have to follow that code.   
 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 28 of 31 
 

Mr. Salter referred to the concept of “grandfathering” PDs and stated that the language in the 
JPA does not fully define the issue; however, if that is the desire of the FPCC, the language 
would need revision.  He clarified that currently the JPA states that if a PD is in place and the 
JPA has had the opportunity/authority to review and accept (?) the project, it does not require 
further review.  However, if a PD has not been reviewed by the JPA, it could be subject to 
review by the JPA.  He reiterated that if “full grandfathering” is desired (for instance on Perry 
DiLoretto’s project), the language needs to be changed.  Member Cashell stated that the Corps 
approved Mr. DiLoretto’s project.  Mr. Salter stated even though that may be the case, the 
Corps probably did not review the project from the perspective of possible impact to the Flood 
Project.  Director Duerr agreed and added that normally the Corps’ regulatory review focuses on 
impacts to wetlands.   
 
Vice-Chair Gustin stated that he thinks it is important to move forward with the “grandfathering” 
issue, with which Chair Smith agreed. 
 
Chair Smith stated that he does not want to see any issue of timeline problems associated with 
JPA review of a project to any of the entities.  He added that if the deadline is ten days and no 
comments have been received, the comments are not needed.  Mr. Salter agreed and stated 
that Sparks’ attorney Doug Thornley specified that if the timeframe is not met, the JPA would 
waive its right to appeal.   
 
Member Larkin stated he thinks Mr. Salter has done a stellar job on the JPA.  He referred to 
Article 4.02.C.1, which states that a separate permit or approval shall not be required from the 
Board and stated he thinks that is extremely important.  He stated his final comment is that 
there has been a suggestion recommending that Section 4 be eliminated from the JPA and 
asked Mr. Salter to explain the relevance of the section in the perspective of the JPA and what 
the overall Agreement is attempting to accomplish in terms of rates, tolls and fees. 
 
Mr. Salter stated that the immediate impact would be that Article 4 provides a mechanism to 
impose rates, tolls and charges.  He stated that in reviewing the law of the case, that in order for 
a fee to not be a “tax” (which we do not have the authority to impose), one factor is that the fee 
must be a regulatory fee and must be part of an overall regulatory scheme.  He stated that he 
and Mr. Tackes have seen fees in other areas that were stricken by the courts because they 
were only being charged to build something; it was not a fee to regulate anything.  He reiterated 
that Article 4 is very critical if the JPA is to move forward with issuing fees. If a JPA were to be 
agreed upon without Article 4, there would be no way to finance the project.  
 
Vice-Chair Gustin called for further comments regarding the JPA.  Hearing none, he stated that 
many earlier items were contingent on action taken on this item and asked if Members would 
prefer to go back to those items at this time or move forward with this item.  Member Martini 
stated he thought it would be prudent to continue with action on this item, on which the other 
items would be based.    
 
Member Larkin made a motion to continue this item to the next regular meeting in 
November because several additional meetings with affected stakeholders must be held 
and some revisions to the JPA are needed prior to distribution to the three governing 
bodies.  Chair Smith seconded the motion.   
 
Member Humke stated that he hesitates to ask staff to do more work on the JPA; however, 
there are some important implementation elements, such as the Policy Handbook (which is very 
important to the development community, as well as the City and County land use regulators).  

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 29 of 31 
 

He suggested perhaps trying to summarize some of the key points of the handbook if it is not 
premature.  Mr. Salter clarified that under the JPA, there would be no land use Policy 
Handbook; however, it would make recommendations to the individual planning commissions to 
include in their own Policy Handbooks.  He added there would be some regulation detail, which 
will be compiled with the cooperation and input from planning staff of each entity.   
 
Chair Smith asked for clarification that the regulations would be incorporated into Sparks’ 
criteria for plan submittal so the developer will know what is required, leaving only a cursory JPA 
review.  Mr. Salter stated that is correct.  He stated that the issue of a potential disagreement 
between (for instance a Sparks’ planner and the hydrological engineer for the JPA), is 
addressed in the JPA that if adverse impact is suspected by the JPA, the comment from the 
JPA will be included in the staff report; however, the planner can respond in any manner they 
wish.   
 
Vice-Chair Gustin stated that he is in support of the motion with a caveat; there has been much 
discussion today, in addition to many phone calls and comments related to the “extra layer” and 
he stated there are many interpretations by staff, the development community, the HOAs and 
homeowners who would be impacted by flooding.  He clarified that discussions have however 
been cordial.  He agreed with Member Larkin’s suggestion to continue to meet with the 
community groups and suggested that both sides find a way to work together in moving forward 
with a decision one way or another.   
 
Mr. Salter asked if there are thoughts or alternatives on which the FPCC desires further 
exploration.  Vice-Chair Gustin stated that he received questions as follows: 

• Do we need the modeling? 
• Where does the water come from, i.e. if 80% comes from west of Reno can the runoff be 

handled there cheaper rather than a $1.6 billion project? 
• What assurances do we have that the project will be funded 65% - 35%?  If so, can the 

community afford its share of $400 to $500 million? 
• Once the scope of the project is determined, what kind of flood protection will it provide 

(80-, 90-, 100-, or 117-year protection)? 
• Once that is known, will it be worth the money?  He stated that he heard Mr. Peek say 

he’s in favor of anything that helps with flood protection. 
• Hopefully HOAs have not been misled.  What level of protection do they need to not 

flood or to a lesser degree? 
 

Vice-Chair Gustin suggested that the issue of “putting the horse before the cart” needs to be 
examined, i.e. what happens once the JPA is approved?  Director Duerr agreed these are very 
important questions and suggested compiling them into a “Question and Answer Fact Sheet” by 
staff, which might help move the process forward.   
 
Chair Smith asked if the intention under the motion is to also continue the other continued items 
to the next meeting.  Vice-Chair Gustin clarified this motion only applies to the JPA.   
 
Vice-Chair Gustin called for a vote on the motion, which carried unanimously.   
 
Member Larkin made a motion to continue items 5D, 5F and 5G to a future meeting, not 
necessarily the next meeting because it will probably be a wrap-up meeting on the JPA.  
Member Martini seconded the motion.   
 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 30 of 31 
 

Vice-Chair Gustin stated that he sees the rationale for the hydrologic model whether or not the 
JPA is approved.  He added that he believes there is a need to correct some imperfect 
information that is in place currently.  He added that he would support Member Larkin’s motion 
to continue the item; however, he reiterated that he believes the model is a necessary tool for 
the Flood Project.   
 
Member Cashell asked what is being used currently and what the need for the model is.  Paul 
Urban stated that currently HEC-RAS (the Corps’ hydrologic engineering center-river analysis 
system) is being used; however, it does not accurately provide the same results that are 
measured by the gages.  He stated the only way to do that is to extremely modify coefficients 
that go beyond the design of the model.  He added that the new model is a grid-based model so 
each grid can be examined individually and does a much better job of simulating water flows 
through the watershed.   
 
Mr. Urban stated that past modeling was always done on a project-by-project basis; however, 
the regional model will apply to the entire watershed.  Member Cashell asked if Desert 
Research Institute (DRI) has been asked to consult on the modeling.  Mr. Urban stated that 
under the proposed consultant contract, DRI is one of Manhard’s sub-consultants that will be 
working on the model.  Director Duerr reiterated that engineers from DRI would be providing 
mathematical support to Manhard.  Member Cashell stated that potentially the model could “kill” 
a development project.  Mr. Urban stated he does not believe so; he explained the process of 
the model is to ensure what is needed (detention facilities, etc.) to not impact the Flood Project 
based on other conditions. 
 
Director Duerr stated that Item 5G is on the critical path; the Flood Project has made 
commitments to evaluate all the utilities that need to be relocated by November.  She stated that 
an amendment to the contract with Dinter Engineering is needed to continue evaluating the 300 
utilities so the Flood Project does not hold up the project.   
 
Director Duerr reported that Item 5F is to approve funding to support legal services, which is 
needed in order to move forward with work on the JPA.   
 
Vice-Chair Gustin stated that there is a motion on the floor to continue discussion of the 
JPA, as well as items 5D, 5F and 5G, and called for the vote, which carried unanimously. 
 
Vice-Chair Gustin stated that action was needed on item 5C (which was approved earlier 
in the meeting).  A motion was made, seconded and approved unanimously.   

 
5F. AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH KAEMPFER CROWELL RENSHAW 

GRONAUER & FIORENTINO (LEGAL SERVICES) TO INCREASE AMOUNT BY 
$150,000, FOR A TOTAL CONTACT AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $250,000 - Mimi 
Fujii-Strickler, Administrative Services Manager, Truckee River Flood Project and Greg 
Salter, Deputy District Attorney 
Discussion regarding proposed amendment to the existing agreement with Kaempfer 
Crowell Renshaw Gronauer & Fiorentino to increase the existing contract amount by 
$150,000 (from $100,000 to $250,000), for legal services in connection with the 
establishment of fees, rates and charges to be imposed to residents and businesses in 
Washoe County to finance the acquisition, construction, operation and maintenance of 
the Flood Project. Possible action to approve the amendment to agreement and forward 
to the BCC for consent. 

 

 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee Minutes – October 8, 2010                            Page 31 of 31 
 

 

 
5G. AMENDMENT TO RELOCATION AND LAND ACQUISITION SUPPORT SERVICES 

AGREEMENTS TO INCREASE CONTRACT AMOUNTS BY $305,000, FOR TOTAL 
CONTACT AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $605,000 - Mimi Fujii-Strickler, Administrative 
Services Manager, Truckee River Flood Project 
Discussion regarding proposed amendment to the existing relocation and land 
acquisition support services agreements by $305,000 (from $300,000 to $605,000), for 
existing contracts with Property Specialists, Inc., Overland Pacific & Cutler, and 
Associated Right-of -Way Services, Inc.  Possible action to approve the amendment to 
agreement and forward to the BCC for consent. 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT  
 
With no further business, Member Martini made a motion to adjourn.  Member Larkin 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 11:43 
a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
Niki Linn, Recording Secretary 
 
Approved by FPCC in session on________________ 2010. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TRUCKEE RIVER FLOOD PROJECT  

Truckee River       Flood Management Project 
 

FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE 
Tuesday, October 5, 2010 

11:00 A.M. 
 

DRAFT OF MINUTES 
 

         
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – Determination of a Quorum                11:04 a.m. 
 

The meeting was called to order at 11:04 a.m. by Vice Chair Dan Gustin on Tuesday, October 5, 
2010 at the Washoe County Complex Caucus Room, 2nd Floor of Building A at 1001 E 9th Street 
Reno, Nevada.  
 
Roll Call:  Vice Chair Dan Gustin, David Humke, Katy Simon, and Donna Dreska were present for 
a quorum.  Shaun Carey arrived at 11:15 a.m. 
 
Staff Present: Naomi Duerr, Director; Jay Aldean, Deputy Director; Paul Urban, Project Manager; 
Mimi Fujii-Strickler, Project Supervisor; Lisa Gianoli, Flood Project Consultant; Greg Salter, Deputy 
District Attorney; Danielle Henderson, Lisa Diebler and Laura Bayer. 
 
Additional people present: JoAnn Meacham, Charla Honey, Kerri Lanza, John Sherman, Burnham 
Moffat, Dave Roundtree and Jeff Cronk.  
 

2.      ANNOUNCEMENTS –                 
 
Director Duerr announced that a Truckee River Flood Project Town Hall Meeting the night prior 
drew approximately 40 attendees, compared with approximately 125 at the previous Town Hall 
meeting.  Duerr expressed her gratitude to Flood Project staff for a seamless production and 
successful event.  Vice Chair Gustin echoed the congratulations, noting that Director Duerr did 
an admirable job fielding questions during the Town Hall Meeting.  
 
Director Duerr also announced that the Flood Project received a $600,000 FEMA grant for  
demolition of three buildings on Edison Way.  
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT – Limited to three minutes per person                     11:09 a.m. 
None.  
 

4. MINUTES - Approval of provisional minutes of the Finance Subcommittee Meeting of September 9, 
2010.  

 
 Vice Chair Humke motioned to approve the minutes, Katy Simon seconded. The motion 

passed with one recusal by Donna Dreska, because she was not present for the meeting on 
September 9, 2010.  
 



Flood Project Finance Subcommittee Minutes – October 5, 2010 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 

 

 

5.  FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE ITEMS 
 

A.  CARMEN GROUP UPDATE/LOBBYIST UPDATE                       11:10 a.m. 
 
Lobbyist Mia O’Connell updated the group via phone.  O’Connell said staff is working on obtaining early 
construction funds from the Corps of Engineers in Fiscal Year 2011.  O’Connell said she was following 
up with Corps Division and Headquarters to develop a “fact sheet” for a conference between the House 
and Senate Appropriation Committees that outlines the Corps’ capability.  

 
O’Connell said she felt the efforts were moving in a positive direction, but didn’t expect the FY2011 
appropriation issues to be resolved until after the election. Congress has adjourned for the 
election, returning on November 15.  

 
O’Connell added that Director Duerr and the Flood Project team have worked on a more complete 
Chief’s Report for the project as a result of the Assistant Secretary of the Army and Senator Reid’s 
push on the Corps’ schedule.  Instead of doing all of the design and planning work on both the 
National Economic Development Plan (NED) and Locally Preferred Plan (LPP), the best the Corps 
could propose would be an NED only by next year.  Flood Project staff have had ongoing 
discussions with Sacramento leadership  regarding completion of both the LPP and NED in order 
to be ready for a possible WRDA 2011.  

 
Director Duerr added that she had agendized that conversation for the next day’s FPCC meeting, 
including a summary of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) discussion, with a list of pros and 
cons for pushing forward or holding back.  

 
Vice Chair Dan Gustin noted that the progress sounded positive, and that Senator Reid’s office 
and Corps’ leadership in Sacramento appear to have listened.  

 
O’Connell added that as for WRDA, after the second session of Congress, both parties on the 
Senate side expressed interest in moving forward in the WRDA bill in the beginning of next year. 
This year’s efforts are laying the groundwork for developing the bill next year.  

 
C. AMENDMENT TO THE FCS GROUP, INC. CONTRACT (ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES 
FOR FLOOD PROJECT) TO ADD TO SCOPE OF WORK AND INCREASE BUDGET BY 
$250,000)                11:26 a.m. 

 
Discussion on the amendment to the current contract with FCS Group regarding provision of 
consulting services and preparation of reports to be used in establishing revenue requirements of, 
and the rate and fees to be collected for, the financing of the Flood Project, to add to the scope of 
services and increase the amount of the agreement by $250,000, from $975,000 to $1,225,000.  
 
Vice Chair Gustin requested additional comments as to why the budget needs an increase.  

 
Director Duerr said FCS largely completed their work and then staff went through a lengthy 
process preparing a new governance model.  The FCS economic and rate data is from two years 
ago and a different economic era; all information needs to be updated.  New financial assumptions 
need to be provided by the finance team, and the funding area boundaries need to be revised.  
Actual work is estimated at $150,000, with a $50,000 contingency. The Corps will develop an NED 
cost share and Flood staff needs to prepare for the local match.  



Flood Project Finance Subcommittee Minutes – October 5, 2010 
Page 3 of 7 
 
 

 

 

 
Director Duerr and Vice Chair Gustin discussed possible rates. Duerr explained there are several 
rate options and strategies available.  The Finance Committee discussed these in detail a year 
ago. The information needs to be updated and the revised data needs to be presented to the 
Finance Committee.  

 
Vice Chair Gustin suggested a sunset of the rates might make implementing rates more palatable 
for the community.  Director Duerr said sumseting would pose challenges because of ongoing 
costs even after the project is physically built such as debt service, repairs, and operations and 
maintenance.  
 
Donna Dreska moved to approve, Shaun Carey seconded. The motion passed unanimously.   

 
 

D.  PHASE II HYDROLOGIC MODEL CONTRACT WITH MANHARD ENGINEERING IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $900,000                           11:35 a.m. 
 
Flood staff Laura Bayer read an email from Mike Dillon for the record. The email reads: 
“The Builders Association appreciates the open dialogue and effort on meetings for the model and 
our upcoming meeting with our group of stakeholders on Thursday October 14th to discuss the 
proposed JPA. Our position is we could ask the committee to postpone the decision on the 
proposed model until the regulatory authority of a new agency is clearly defined. These issues are 
related and come to the heart of the question of how the model will be used for project review 
authority which the builders oppose. Thank you for your consideration. Mike Dillon, Executive 
Director, Builders Association of Northern Nevada.” 
 
Director Duerr said staff met with AGC this morning and put to bed a number of rumors about the 
project, proposed rates, and the JPA text.  Director Duerr asked Paul Urban to update the 
committee on the basis and purpose of the model.  

 
Paul Urban explained the role and possible usage of the hydrologic model, describing it as a tool 
that allows the implementation of the Project Partnership Agreement (PPA). Urban said the usage 
of the model was fully explained in meetings with the Builders Association of Northern Nevada, 
including why the model could be beneficial to the building community.  Urban explained that the 
model could address issues about runoff and hydrology.  Urban added that the model could also 
allow for regional planning of drainage and storm sewers, with even the potential for regional flood 
detention.  Urban recommended to the committee that the Flood Project needs the tool regardless 
of the details of the JPA, and should continue work on the tool.  

 
Urban added that the proposed tool could help determine most appropriate land use changes in 
terms of density and certain drainage patterns prior to construction of proposed developments.  
Urban said that the model would be constantly updated as each development is actually 
constructed.  Agencies would let the Flood Project know what is being built and would update the 
model accordingly so remains fresh.  

 
Vice Chair Humke asked about Storey County and Tribes not participating in the use of the model, 
and how staff will handle analysis of those areas. Urban explained that Phase II of the model will 
examine drainage upstream of Vista Boulevard, involving very little of Storey County.  Staff could 
provide a computer program with assumptions and formulas for use in other regions. The 



Flood Project Finance Subcommittee Minutes – October 5, 2010 
Page 4 of 7 
 
 

 

 

information would be available to the general public; additionally, training on how to run the model 
will be provided so that engineers and developers have a better understanding of how to use the 
tool. Phase II of the model development scope of work includes a two-day forum to describe how 
the model works. The departure from the current model is that the input and output will be GIS 
based spreadsheet maps to include layers showing land use, rather than data tables.  

 
Urban explained that a part of the process will include a Modeling Subcommittee Team to evaluate 
the parameters in the model. In the future, the flood warning system would include precipitation 
gauges and flow gauges to figure out where rain falls and what the flow is at various spots.  

 
Vice Chair Gustin asked how developers would be affected in terms of cost and what would 
happen if the model is in place and the JPA or committee say “We don’t recommend going into a 
project as this level”.  What happens if a project is passed and someone is flooded – where is the 
liability? 

 
Urban said that a lawyer that deals in this arena came to the Truckee Meadows several times and 
explained the use of the term “no adverse impact”. The new model tool would be able to better 
show weather and whether or not a project is expected to actually impact others.  

 
Director Duerr added that the Flood Project needs a model despite the ultimate decision on 

 governance structure. Vice Chair Gustin recommended making that point strongly on Friday at the 
 meeting.  
 

Shaun Carey asked that it (the proposed contract) be considered for (flood) financing, and 
whether or not it is proper use of funds be determined by a full board; that being the caveat 
for consideration, Carey motioned to approve the $900,000. Katy Simon seconded. The 
motion passed unanimously.  

 
 

E. TRACTION PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF RENO FOR VISIONING AND 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES (30%) FOR THE VIRGINIA STREET BRIDGE TRACTION 
PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $1.8 MILLION                                        12:07 p.m. 

 
Jay Aldean provided the update.  In 2007, the FPCC approved a TRAction project in downtown for 
the community visioning for four bridges. The initial project amounted to $780,000. Somewhere 
during that process it was determined there was a need to break out the Virginia Street bridge and 
make it a separate project and move into design. As staff looked at that, a recommended $2 million 
change was added to the original Phase 1 that would become Phase II.  

 
The FPCC approved Phase II and Flood staff began to find a design consultant to design the new 
bridge and conduct additional visioning.  Aldean said it was determined that it would be cleaner if 
staff started fresh with a new contract and agreement with the City of Reno, specifically for the 
Virginia Street Bridge- Phase II.  Staff is now making the recommendation to start that Phase II 
process.  Finance Committee members were provided the draft contract in their Board book.  In the 
new contract for Phase 2, Step 1 of this process is to design the Virginia Street Bridge, complete 
visioning,  make the bridge-type selection, and complete environmental work for bridge. The cost is 
$1.79 million for Phase2 - Step 1.  Charla Honey and Kerri Lanza worked with a team to select the 
bridge designers.  Honey is speaking with the Reno City Council on October 27.  Overall the full 
Phase II project is estimated to cost $4 million.  



Flood Project Finance Subcommittee Minutes – October 5, 2010 
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

 

 

 
Vice Chair Gustin asked for clarification – staff is looking at possibly six bridges and addressing 
water flow issues. Staff is now going with the TRAction Project at the Virginia Street Bridge 
because it is the most endangered bridge in the state.  
 
Aldean explained that replacing the Virginia Street Bridge with a higher bridge would greatly 
improve the downtown flooding scenario.  Kerri Lanza added that the replacement would take the 
bridge from a 20 -year flood flow passage to 40- or 50-year flow. 

 
Donna Dreska moved to approve, Shaun Carey seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
F. AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH KAEMPFER CROWELL RENSHAW GRONAUER 
& FIORENTINO (LEGAL SERVICES) TO INCREASE BUDGET BY $150,000      12:14 p.m. 

  
 There was no discussion for this item. 
  
 Shaun Carey moved to approve, Donna Dreska seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
 G.  AMENDMENT TO RELOCATION AND LAND ACQUISITION SUPPORT SERVICES 

AGREEMENTS TO INCREASE TOTAL BUDGET BY $305,000           12:15 p.m. 
 

Mimi Fujii-Strickler led the discussion on a proposed amendment to the relocation and land 
acquisition support services agreement budgets to increase the amount by $305,000, from 
$300,000 to $605,000, for existing contracts with Property Specialists, Inc., Overland Pacific & 
Cutler, and Associated Right-of-Way Services, Inc.  
 
Fujii-Strickler said that to date, the Flood Project has acquired 12 properties and has relocated 
approximately 36 tenants.  The contract budget is nearly exhausted as staff moves forward with 
potential additional land acquisitions and the possibility of needing to relocate more tenants.  One 
of the areas in question is the number of utilities that may possibly need to be relocated.  

 
Aldean added that staff is analyzing 150 to 300 utilities regarding location, cost estimates and titles 

 searches.  
 

Katy Simon suggested that Flood Staff bring additional information explaining additional costs in 
case it is requested by the FPCC.  

 
Fujii-Strickler explained that the total $605,000 is strictly for professional services. Staff does have 
a budget of $2.7 million for actual relocation.  

 
Katy Simon moved to approve, David Humke seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

 



Flood Project Finance Subcommittee Minutes – October 5, 2010 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 

 

 

 
H. MONTHLY REPORTS ON FLOOD PROJECT FINANCIAL STATUS AND FINANCIAL 
RELATED ACTIVITIES                          12:21 p.m.  

 
Lisa Gianoli provided the update, making reference to paperwork and information available to 
committee members in the agenda packet, with detailed information by line item.  
 
David Humke moved to approve, Katy Simon seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
 B. REVIEW PROPOSED FLOOD PROJECT COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT (JPA)  

    12:34 p.m. 
 

A separate attachment of the Joint Powers Authority (JPA) and a summary of the changes to the 
Key Provisions (copy on file) was provided to the committee by Deputy District Attorney Greg 
Salter.  Director Duerr headed the update, stating that key issues discussed at the last meeting 
have had progress.  
 
Staff had recently met with staff from the City of Sparks and worked on a draft of Article 10, which 
was provided to the managers.  Staff is seeking any comments and proposed changes there.  
Staff also met with UNR to move forward with the MOU on land acquisition at the Main Station 
Farm.  The vision is that UNR would not be on the new board, and they were provided with a draft 
of the agreement.  By no means is the MOU complete, but it was a significant step in terms of 
engaging with UNR’s attorneys.   
 
Staff is requesting that the FPCC approve a draft of the JPA agreement before the November 8 
Joint Meeting.  

 
Salter explained that the JPA Agreement is a 70-page agreement that establishes a JPA Truckee 
River Flood Management Authority. It will act as a separate entity with all debts and obligations 
separate from the entities that created it.  It will include six directors, two appointed by each 
member, with a majority rule on all matters except those listed on page two. Directors will have 
two-year terms, and the Board will follow the open meeting law. Rules and procedures will be 
established at a later time. Salter reviewed important changes to the Key Provisions with 
committee members.  Salter explained the JPA’s role in regulating the control and flow of flood 
waters.  

 
Salter also further explained the land use powers. The JPA, as far as planning process permitting 
and planning commissions are concerned, is limited to reviewing and recommending.  
 
There are delegated powers to assess and implement fees. One power that was not delegated to 
the new Authority is the power of eminent domain. The new Authority would operate the early 
warning system and has some emergency operational powers, but no police powers.  

 
Two issues need resolution with the City of Sparks:  how to deal with the fees they currently have 
in place and the North Truckee Drain Project. The agreement states that the City of Sparks will 
continue to charge their fees and use the fees to finish the design of the North Truckee Drain 
Project and acquire all the land it can with those fees. When the Authority is ready to enact a rate 
resolution, staff will prepare a draft to present to City of Sparks. If they agree, they will initiate 
ordinances to rescind their fees immediately before the regional fees are implemented, then 



Flood Project Finance Subcommittee Minutes – October 5, 2010 
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 

 

Sparks will convey the North Truckee Drain assets to the Authority. The authority agrees to 
operate and maintain the North Truckee Drain. Fees have to be implemented 180 days from 
certain events listed in the Agreement.  

 
Vice Chair Gustin recommended having a PowerPoint prepared for Board members on Friday.  

 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT  
 The meeting adjourned at 1:09 p.m.  
 
 

Minutes prepared by Vanessa Vancour. vancour@gmail.com. 775.771.5879 



 

 
 

Truckee River   Flood Management Project 
 
 

FLOOD PROJECT COORDINATING COMMITTEE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2010 

  
   

DATE:  October 19, 2010 
 
TO:  Flood Project Coordinating Committee Members 
 
THROUGH: Naomi Duerr, Director, Truckee River Flood Management 

Project, 850-7420 nduerr@washoecounty.us 
 
FROM: Mimi Fujii-Strickler, Flood Project Supervisor  

850-7431, mfujii@washoecounty.us 
 
SUBJECT: Carmen Group Federal Lobbyist Monthly Report  
 
 
SUMMARY 

 
The Carmen Group represents an integral part of the Flood Project’s overall strategy to 
ensure that the Truckee River Flood Management Project receives priority attention by the 
Army Corps of Engineers’ management. The Carmen Group has effectively provided federal 
lobbying services to the Flood Project for the last four years and promoted our project on a 
daily and weekly basis with the Corps of Engineers’ Headquarters staff and the Assistant 
Secretary of the Army.  It is through the Carmen Group’s assistance that our local 
community retains control over the project formulation process so we can effectively build 
our preferred plan as well as maintain an equitable cost-sharing arrangement with the 
Corps.  
 
See attached Carmen Group Monthly Status Reports for September  
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION 2010 
 
January 2010  The Finance Subcommittee conducted a teleconference with Mia  
   O’Connell of the Carmen Group during the Finance Subcommittee 
   meeting. 
 
February 2010 No Finance Subcommittee Meeting. 
 
 
March 2010   The Finance Subcommittee conducted a teleconference with Mia  
   O’Connell of the Carmen Group during the Finance Subcommittee 
   meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM #6A 

mailto:nduerr@washoecounty.us
mailto:mfujii@washoecounty.us


August 13, 2010 Flood Project Coordinating Committee Meeting 
Page 2 
 
 

 2

 
April 2010  No Finance Subcommittee Meeting. 
 
May 2010  The Finance Subcommittee conducted a teleconference with Mia  
   O’Connell of the Carmen Group during the Finance Subcommittee 
   meeting. 
 
June 2010  The Finance Subcommittee conducted a teleconference with Mia  
   O’Connell of the Carmen Group during the Finance Subcommittee 
   meeting. 
 
JULY 2010  No Finance Meeting 
 
 
August 2010  The Finance Subcommittee conducted a teleconference with Mia  
   O’Connell of the Carmen Group during the Finance Subcommittee 
   meeting. 
 
September 2010 The Finance Subcommittee conducted a teleconference with Mia  
   O’Connell of the Carmen Group during the Finance Subcommittee 
   meeting. 
 
October 2010  The Finance Subcommittee conducted a teleconference with Mia  
   O’Connell of the Carmen Group during the Finance Subcommittee 
   meeting. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no identified fiscal impact for this agenda item.   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the FPCC accept this report and provide any direction to the staff on 
the information presented herein. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Motion to accept the report and verbal update. 

 
MFS:nsd 

 



 
 
 

 
 

Monthly Status Report 
 
Washoe County 
October 2010 
 
During the month of October, your consultant was involved in, and advised on the 
following activities on behalf of Washoe County. 
 
Flood Project Issues – Early Corps’ Construction 
 
In an effort to ensure that the proper groundwork was layed for pursuing construction 
funds for the Corps in the final appropriations conference agreement for FY 2011 for the 
North Truckee Drain feature of the Truckee River Project, the consultant worked 
successfully with the Corps District, Division and Headquarters to have a Corps-drafted 
fact sheet prepared to describe how construction funds would be used by the Corps for 
the project in FY 2011.  The consultant worked this effort through the Corps’ chain so 
that the Senate Appropriations Committee would have the agency assessment that it 
could use the construction funds and how it could use the funds in FY 2011.  The Senate 
Appropriations Committee requested the consultant secure this justification from the 
Corps and we did as a prelude to conference.  The consultant verified that the Corps had 
produced the fact sheet and that the Appropriations Committee knew this and was 
prepared to ask for it as the conference got underway.  
 
ASA-Policy Initiative - Community-Based Solutions – ASA and Headquarters 
Follow-up 
 
As a follow-up to the Sacramento District’s weak response back to Corps’ Headquarters 
on the schedule and plan for getting the Chief’s Report on the Truckee River Project done 
in 2011 in time for project authorization in WRDA, the consultant continued to discuss 
the matter with Ms. Duerr, Corps Division, Headquarters and ASA’s office.  The Corps 
District had been proposing that it could only do a Chief’s Report on a 50-year NED plan 
by 2011.  What the consultant continued to push at the highest levels for was that it was 
unacceptable for the Corps to be supporting a Chief’s Report with 50-year protection, 
with cost-sharing limited to that project that was flawed and would not be built for 
inclusion in WRDA.  Time and time again we have pointed out that a 50-year project 
could not be certified by FEMA, nor do we believe that the resource agencies would 
agree to it or permit for it, nor does it provide the level of protection the community 
needs. 
 
In discussions with ASA’s office as a follow-up to ASA’s tour of the project earlier in the 
year and her interest in finding a better, more defensible path for the federal government, 



 2

we have pushed ASA’s office into holding an extraordinary 2 day meeting in Washington 
to get on a better path.  ASA’s office is joining Headquarters in calling for Division and 
District to come to Washington on October 26-27 for a 2 day session to direct the field in 
the objective of coming up with a Chief’s Report for the plan the community wants, 
having the federal government share in those costs at a high level and having this Chief’s 
Report done in 2011 in time for inclusion in WRDA.  The session will also allow ASA 
and Headquarters to work through the policy issues to allow for a focused study and 
Chief’s Report and this streamlined approach, with the thought that this streamlined and 
responsible approach could also be used by the Corps for other communities.  The 
consultant will receive a briefing from ASA’s office on the meeting and will be reporting 
on the outcome. 
 
 
Water Resources Development Act of 2010 
 
The consultant is working with Senator Reid’s staff, the Senate Environment and Public 
Works Committee staff and ASA’s staff to push for the proper Chief’s Report reflecting 
the community’s needs at the highest federal cost-sharing in time for next year’s WRDA.  
The consultant will continue to work closely with the Committee in the development of 
the Truckee River authorization. 
  
FY 2011 Appropriations and FY 2012 Budget Request for the Truckee River 
Project 
 
While the consultant is working on the FY 2011 appropriations for the project, she is also 
working to push the Corps to include the project in the FY 2012 budget. 



Fund 211-Truckee River Flood Management Infrastructure

 Adopted Budget 
2011

Adjusted Budget 
2011

Actual Revenues as 
of 10/31/2010  *

% of Actual 
Revenues to 

Original Budget

Beginning Fund Balance: $22,646,769.00 $23,176,979.74 $23,176,979.74

Infrastructure Sales Tax  6,072,182.00 6,072,182.00 1,119,183.64 18.43%
Interest Earnings 350,000.00 350,000.00 96,721.95 27.63%
Realized gain on investments 0.00 0.00 68,854.54 N/A
Unrealized gain on investments 0.00 0.00 31,226.65 N/A
Rental Income 67,637.00 67,637.00 22,150.00 32.75%
Miscellaneous Revenue 7,706.00 7,706.00 7,410.40 N/A
      TOTAL REVENUES 6,497,525.00 6,497,525.00 1,345,547.18 20.71%

 Adopted Budget 
2011

Adjusted Budget 
2011

Actual Expenditures 
as of 10/31/2010

% of Actual 
Expenditures to 

Budget

Salaries and Wages 1,242,789.10 1,242,789.10 341,029.25 27.44%
Employee Benefits 420,073.36 420,073.36 114,202.47 27.19%
Services & Supplies ** 3,596,768.47 3,932,221.04 368,079.44 9.36%
Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A
Bond Issuance Costs 0.00 0.00 N/A
Debt Service Fees 1,500.00 1,500.00 3,000.00 200.00%
    TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,261,130.93 5,596,583.50 826,311.16 14.76%

 Adopted Budget 
2011

Adjusted Budget 
2011

Actual Expenditures 
as of 10/31/2010

% of Actual to 
Budget

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES
Debt to be Issued 0.00 0.00 N/A
    TOTAL OTHER SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Transfers to Debt Service 5,042,020.00 5,042,020.00 2,304,843.75 45.71%
Transfers to Infrastructure 16,500,000.00 16,500,000.00 0.00 0.00%
    TOTAL OTHER USES 21,542,020.00 21,542,020.00 2,304,843.75 10.699%

Fund 211 - Current Fund Balance: $21,391,372.01

Net change in fund balance:    ($1,785,607.73)

$24,387,714.78
Footnotes
*  Infrastructure sales tax deposits lag 2 months behind
** Detail for Services & Supplies on next page

Combined Fund Balance 211 and 494

Truckee River Flood Project - Financial Report for October 1, 2010 - October 31, 2010

Expenditures

Revenues

33.3% of year complete



Adjusted Budget 
2011

Actual 
Expenditures

Actual + 
Encumbered

% of Actual + 
Encumbered 

Expenditures to 
Budget*

2,484,894.94 112,663.71 356,686.94 14%
      Lab Testing 72,000.00 0%

17,540.00 4,303.38 4,303.38 25%
152,555.50 7,976.72 21,557.90 14%
51,200.00 9,193.51 26,119.25 51%

      Software Maintenance 15,000.00 9,053.00 9,053.00 60%
11,000.00 600.24 600.24 5%
28,000.00 3,257.99 5,502.99 20%
34,321.57 5,512.91 21,429.84 62%
10,000.00 2,065.28 8,321.91 83%
5,300.00 423.43 423.43 8%

      Postage 500.00 139.40 139.40 28%
1,300.00 195.69 195.69 15%
3,550.00 2,429.84 2,429.84 68%
8,000.00 353.46 1,144.46 14%
1,500.00 0%

150.00 0%
15,120.00 161.46 161.46 1%
4,900.00 2,935.02 2,935.02 60%
4,500.00 1,238.88 1,238.88 28%
6,000.00 1,123.06 1,123.06 19%
3,000.00 601.39 601.39 20%
1,800.00   0%

20,000.00 249.00 249.00 1%
      Undesignated Budget 250,000.00 0%

102,194.56 34,064.80 34,064.80 33%
2,000.00 337.52 337.52 17%

35,600.00 13,535.61 13,535.61 38%
21,200.00 28,183.16 28,183.16 133%
33,900.00 7,539.36 7,539.36 22%

      ESD Asset 360.00 240.00 240.00 67%
2,027.63 675.88 675.88 33%
2,293.28 794.64 794.64 35%

300.00   0%
2,280.00 624.30 624.30 27%

100,000.00 1,844.32 1,844.32 2%
30,000.00 5,587.62 5,587.62 19%

      Overhead 275,000.00 58,544.00 58,544.00 21%
102,933.56 59,519.45 94,975.95 92%

      Computers Non-Capital 15,000.00 0%
      Computer Software Non-Capital 5,000.00 0%

3,932,221.04 375,968.03 711,164.24 18%

Truckee River Flood Project - Financial Report for October 1,  2010 - October 31, 2010

Fund 211 - Services & Supplies

33.3% of year complete

Services & Supplies Detail:
      Professional Services

      Service Contract

      Express Courier

      Copy Machine Expense
      Special Dept. Expense (outreach)

      Office Supplies

      Printing

      Invest Pool Alloc Ex

      Dept Insurance Deductible
      Licenses & Permits

      Books & Subscriptions

      Repairs & Maint (for purchased properties)

      Operating Supplies

      Other Expense

      Food Purchases
      Utilities  (for purchased properties)

      Advertising

      Equip Srv Replace

      Water/Sewer (for purchased properties)
      Natural Gas (for purchased properties)

      Network & Data Lines

      LT Lease-Office Space

      Seminars & Meetings
      Auto Expense
      Cellular Phone

      Telephone Land Lines

      Dues

      Equip Srv O&M

TOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

      Property & Liability 
      Travel 

      ESD Fuel Charge
      Equip Srv Motor Pool

      Equipment Non-Capital



*  At this point in the year (33.3% complete), Actuals and Encumbrances total 18 % of the planned budget



Beginning Fund Balance $1,768,335.00 $3,073,251.30 $3,073,251.30

REVENUES
 Adopted Budget 

2011
Adjusted Budget 

2011
Actual  as of 
10/31/2010  

% of Actual 
Revenues to Budget

Interest - Pooled Inv. 100,000.00 100,000.00 8,512.20 8.51%
RGL Pooled Inv. 0.00 0.00 5,935.99 N/A
URGL Pooled Inv. 0.00 0.00 3,011.46 N/A
Other Misc. Gov't. Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A
      TOTAL REVENUES 100,000.00 127,780.00 17,459.65 13.66%

EXPENDITURES
 Adopted Budget 

2011
Adjusted Budget 

2011
Actual  as of 
10/31/2010  

% of Actual 
Expenditures to 

Budget

Land and TRAction Projects 12,920,000.00 12,670,000.00 36,787.20 0.29%
Invest. Pool Alloc. Expense 6,150.00 6,150.00 377.11 6.13%
Hidden Valley Levee/Elevation Project 1,990,000.00 1,990,000.00 2,900.00 0.15%
RSIC Levee/Floodwall Project 0.00 5,305.76 3,060.00 57.67%
Downtown Reno Bridge Visioning 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Tenant Relocation 584,010.50 591,361.92 51,243.87 8.67%
Tracey Power Plant Restoration 0.00 250,000.00 0.00 0.00%
    TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,500,160.50 17,512,817.68 94,368.18 0.5389%

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES
Adopted Budget 

2011
Adjusted Budget 

2011
Actual  as of 
10/31/2010  

% of Actual to 
Budget

Transfers In from Truckee Flood Mgt. 16,500,000.00 16,500,000.00 0.00 0.00%
    TOTAL OTHER SOURCES 16,500,000.00 16,500,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Transfers Out 0.00 0.00 N/A
    TOTAL OTHER USES 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Fund 494 - Current Fund Balance: $2,996,342.77

Net change in fund balance: ($76,908.53)

$24,387,714.78Combined Fund Balance 211 and 494

Truckee River Flood Project - Financial Report for October 1, 2010 - October 31, 2010

Fund 494 - Infrastructure Capital

33.3% of year complete











































 

 
 
 
 

FLOOD PROJECT COORDINATING COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT 

Truckee River     Flood Management Project 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 5, 2010 
 

    
DATE:   October 22, 2010  

TO:  Flood Project Coordinating Committee Members 

THROUGH: Naomi Duerr, Director, Truckee River Flood Management Project, 850-7420, 
nduerr@washoecounty.us 
   

FROM: Melissa Faigeles, Natural Resource Planner, Truckee River Flood Management 
Project, 850-7430, mfaigeles@washoecounty.us 

 
SUBJECT: ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS’ MONTHLY REPORT  
 

SUMMARY 
 
Beth Salyers, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) Project Manager, is not expected to 
attend the Flood Project Coordinating Committee (FPCC) meeting due to schedule acceleration 
issues she is working on.  However, information on tasks completed, issues or problems that have 
developed, project schedule and funding is attached.   
 
PREVIOUS ACTION 
 
A report by the Corps on their activities in relation to the Flood Project has been established as a 
standing agenda item for each meeting of the FPCC. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None.   
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the FPCC accept this report as an informational item and possibly provide 
direction to staff based on this report. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Motion to accept the Corps report and possibly provide direction to staff. 
 
Attachment:  Corps’ Study Update 
 

 ND/MF     

AGENDA ITEM #10A 
 

mailto:nduerr@washoecounty.us
mailto:mfaigeles@washoecounty.us


Flood Project Coordinating Committee – November 5, 2010 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Attachment 1 
 

Truckee Meadows General Reevaluation Report (Feasibility Study) 
Sacramento District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

 
Study Update for the 

Flood Protection Coordination Committee 
November 5, 2010 

 
PROJECT STATUS UPDATE: 
 
The Corps is continuing the process of redefining the National Economic Development (NED) plan 
and incorporating the comments from the External Technical Review teams (TetraTech, Inc. for the 
2006 & 2009 economic models and David Ford Consulting Engineers for the 2006 & 2009 
hydraulic models). 
 
 
PROJECT PROGRESS UPDATE: 
 

a. We are still working on the fixes to both the hydraulic and economic models. 
i. West Consultants is currently on track to deliver flood plains by mid-October 2010.  

This will keep us on track for a signed Chief’s Report in September 2012. The 
updated schedule with all critical milestones has been updated and sent to the 
Truckee River Flood Project.  Updated schedules are sent bi-weekly. 

 
b. Other areas of the GRR are also moving ahead. These are: 

 
i. Real Estate – Right of Entry (ROEs) requests for installation of groundwater 

monitoring wells in the Vista to Wadsworth reach of the Truckee River, a 
topographic & bathymetric survey and geotechnical borings have been procured 
from the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe. This is in preparation for several awarded 
contracts. 

 
ii. Economics – ETR review comments are being incorporated in the new economic 

models. No further activities planned until receipt of new residual flood plains. 
 

iii. Cost Engineering – Completed updating reconnaissance level cost estimates for 
flood damage reduction elements (levees, floodwalls, benching, home raises, bridge 
raises, etc.) for the 1/50, 1/75 and 1/100 NED plans to support final selection of 
NED plan. Cost estimate for recreation plan (NED & LPP) has been completed, and 
we have met with the TRFP staff on some of the costs. 

 
iv. Hydraulic Engineering – Moving ahead with Interior Drainage analysis.  Scheduled 

completion is December 2010. 
 

v. Civil Engineering – Continuing the preparation of quantities for cost estimating in 
support of the determination of new NED. Preparing portions of the Basis of Design 
(required as part of the AFB). Scopes of work are in place for in-house topographic 
survey of area between Marble Bluff Dam and Pyramid Lake.  
 

vi. Geotechnical Engineering – Geotechnical exploration work along the Truckee River 
between HWY 395 & Vista is now complete. The scope of work for the next phase 



Flood Project Coordinating Committee – November 5, 2010 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

was has begun. This is for the additional geotechnical explorations west of Reno to 
HWY 395 and from Vista to Wadsworth.  

 
vii. Planning – Developing portions of the GRR that can be written at this time. 

Renewed coordination with Fish & Wildlife Service regarding fish passage and bank 
protection issues is ongoing.  

 
Other: 

  
a. Monthly meetings with the TROA/MOA group have been established to discuss fish 

passage design, sedimentation and erosion, and restoration and bank protection. 
 
b. An alternative schedule was submitted to HQ USACE in August.  This schedule showed 

authorization in 2011 of only the NED and NER.  LPP, fish passage, and recreation 
were not included.  HQ has not given us any direction on this alternate schedule and 
USACE is continuing to move ahead on the approved schedule that shows project 
authorization of Fall 2012. 

 
 



5/1/2009
5/31/2013

6/09 7/09 8/09 9/09 10/09 11/09 12/09 1/10 2/10 3/10 4/10 5/10 6/10 7/10 8/10 9/10 10/10 11/10 12/10 1/11 2/11 3/11 4/11 5/11 6/11 7/11 8/11 9/11 10/11 11/11 12/11 1/12 2/12 3/12 4/12 5/12 6/12 7/12 8/12 9/12 10/12 11/12 12/12 1/13 2/13 3/13 4/13 5/13

Corps Baseline Schedule

5/1/2009 5/31/2013
6/09 7/09 8/09 9/0910/0911/0912/09 1/10 2/10 3/10 4/10 5/10 6/10 7/10 8/10 9/10 10/10 11/10 12/10 1/11 2/11 3/11 4/11 5/11 6/11 7/11 8/11 9/11 10/11 11/11 12/11 1/12 2/12 3/12 4/12 5/12 6/12 7/12 8/12 9/12 10/12 11/12 12/12 1/13 2/13 3/13 4/13 5/13

Local Sponsor Timeline

TRUCKEE RIVER FLOOD MANAGEMENT PROJECT
CORPS OF ENGINEERS’ TIMELINE

FPCC MEETING OF 11-5-10

AFB = Alternative Formulation Board
The EIS Alternatives are Selected at the AFB Meeting     ATR =  Agency Technical Review (Internal) GRR = General Re-evaluation Report    PPA = Project Partnering Agreement

ASA = Assistant Secretary of the Army     EIS  =   Environmental Impact Statement ETR  = External Technical Review    Chief’s Report  =  Summary + GRR + EIS

JPA  =  Joint Powers Authority     FPCC  = Flood Project Coordinating Comm. OMB =  Office of Management & Budget    LPP  =  Locally Preferred Plan

CWRB = Civil Works Review Board

1/11
FPCC 

Implement Rates
Effective Date

12/12 - 3/13
OMB Review & Approval

495

9/12
Signed Chief’s 
Report to ASA

494

2/10
LPP Workshop 

w/ FPCC

Jan 2010
LPP Workshop 

w/ Corps & TRFMP staffs

7/10 - 1/11
Develop Rates

Jul 10
Complete Cooperative 

Agreement & JPA Governance 
Workshop w/ FPCC

5/12
CWRB in 

Washington DC
484

1/11 - 6/11
TRFP works w/ Sen Reid

& USACE Legislative Drafting Service

8/11 - 10/11
Public Review

4/11 - 7/11

ATR
430

April 11
Draft GRR/EIS 

for ATR

9/12 - 12/12
ASA Review & Approval1/10 - 10/10

Affect maximum
 required changes to models

12/12
Sign PPA w/ Corp &
Initiate Construction

Nov 2012
Congressional
Authorization &
Appropriation

11/11 - 10/12
National Lobbying

Color Legend

BLACK – Sacramento Corps Responsibilities

PURPLE – Corps Headquarter Responsibilities

RED – Local Sponsor Responsibilities

GREEN – Federal Authorization

12/11
Final 

Summary Report 
471

11/11
Draft GRR/EIS 

Summary Report
465

7/11
AFB in Reno

444

Revision Date: 10-1-10




